Public Document Pack

FAREHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE MEMBER DECISION
(LEISURE AND COMMUNITY PORTFOLIO)

Date: Monday, 5 February 2018
Time: 5.30 pm
Venue: Executive Meeting Area - Civic Offices

Executive Member:  Councillor T M Cartwright, MBE

Page 1




1. Report Published

To consider the following matters for decision for which reports have been
published:-

Non-Key Decision(s)

Relate Solent Service Level Agreement (Pages 3 - 30)

P GRIMWOOD
Chief Executive Officer

www.fareham.gov.uk
26 January 2018

For further information please contact:
Democratic Services, Civic Offices, Fareham, PO16 7AZ
Tel:01329 236100
democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk

Page 2


http://www.fareham.gov.uk/
tel:01329
mailto:democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk

Agenda Item 1(1)

FAREHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to the Deputy Executive Leader for

Decision
05 February 2018
Portfolio: Leisure and Community
Subject: Relate Solent SLA
Report of: Director of Finance and Resources
Strategy/Policy: Leisure and Community

Corporate Objective:  Strong and Inclusive Communities

Purpose:
This report seeks approval for Relate Solent Counselling Service to be awarded
funding for a further one year, commencing 1 April 2018.

Executive Summary:

Relate Solent provides couple and family counselling, individual relationship support,
sex therapy and life skills training courses. They currently provide support to
residents of the Borough from their offices in Southampton, Portsmouth and at other
outlets in Fareham and Whiteley.

Approval is being sought for a further one year agreement with funding of £4000 to
provide this much-needed service in the Borough of Fareham.

The provision of funding for a further one year helps to ensures that the service
remains accessible for those who cannot afford to pay the full cost of a session.

Recommendation:
That approval is given for the Council to enter into a one-year agreement with Relate
Solent for the provision of counselling services, with a grant of £4000.

Reason:
To enable residents of the Borough who cannot afford to pay the full cost of
counselling sessions with local accessible services.

Page 3




Cost of Proposals:
The cost of this proposal is £4000, funded from the Community Grants budget

Risk Assessment:
There are no risks associated with this proposal

Appendices: A: Service Level Agreement between Relate Solent and Fareham
Borough Council. 1 April 2018 — 31 March 2019
B: Relate Solent Constitution

Reference papers: None

Page 4



FAREHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Briefing Paper

Date: 05 February 2018

Subject: Award of Contract

Briefing by: | Director of Finance and Resources

Portfolio: Leisure and Community
INTRODUCTION

This report seeks approval for the Council to enter into a new agreement with
Relate Solent, an independent registered charity who provides counselling
services benefiting residents of the Borough

Relate Solent represents a partnership between Relate services in Portsmouth
and Southampton, who have come together to provide a service for Fareham
residents. Relate Solent offers a range of services, including;

e Couple counselling

e Family counselling

e Children and young people counselling
¢ Individual relationship support

e Sex therapy

e Life skills training courses

Relate Solent counselling helps people understand and cope with the impacts on
their personal relationships and family at all life stages. Parents carry a huge
responsibility to sustain a nurturing environment for their children and often need
external support for their relationships as a couple, as a family or as separating
parents.

Relate Solent offers residents requiring counselling and support the option to
meet at either their offices in Portsmouth and Southampton, and over the past 12
months sessions are also available in Fareham Town Centre and in Whiteley, to
help those residents unable to make the journey to Portsmouth or Southampton.

Page 5




5.

10.

11.

Relate Solent has a broad case of clients across a wide range of ages. The main
iIssues being presented by Fareham residents are;

e Domestic violence and abuse
e Child protection issues (Child abuse/violence)
e Drugs, alcohol and substance abuse
¢ Mental health problems (in particular anxiety & depression)
e Sex and internet addiction
PROPOSAL

This proposal is for the Council to provide funding of £4000 for one year to Relate
Solent, for the delivery of counselling sessions and contributions towards the
bursary scheme for Fareham residents.

This funding would provide residents of Fareham with access to a local
counselling service at a reduced cost.

LOCAL DEMAND

Both Relate organisations aim to provide relationship counselling and sex
therapy to residents of the Borough requesting the service, irrespective of their
ability to pay the full cost of the sessions. The average cost per session is £55
and its proposed that this will remain the same for 2018/19.

It is recognised, especially in the current financial climate that the ability of some
residents to pay the full cost of a counselling session has declined. The ability of
clients to sustain their contribution has been affected and it is estimated that
clients are now only able to contribute £35 towards each session. In this
circumstance and with some of the funding provided through the SLA, Relate is
able to operate a bursary scheme to help subsidise residents in need.

The bursary scheme is ‘means tested’. The client is asked to make a declaration
of income and then a bursary payment is allocated on a sliding scale depending
on that client’s individual circumstances. The funding provided by Fareham
Borough Council enables these residents to access the service in cases where it
would otherwise be financially difficult and in some cases impossible.

During the last financial year (2016/17), 192 residents have benefited from the
bursary scheme. Relate Solent have also provided;

e 482 Relationship counselling sessions
e 38 Family counselling sessions

e 19 Sex therapy sessions

Page 6



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

e 8 Young people’s counselling sessions

It is recognised that with an agreement of £4000, Relate Solent will still have a
funding shortfall. To help address this gap fundraising through events and
projects will need to continue.
RISK ASSESSMENT
There are no risks associated with this proposal.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The Service Level Agreement would provide Relate Solent with £4000 for a
further one year, commencing on 1 April 2018. This funding would be funded
from the Community Grants budget.
Payment would be released upon the signing of the Service Level Agreement
(marked Appendix A). Furthermore, at six monthly intervals, Relate Solent will
provide the Leisure and Community Manager with statistical information detailing
the services provided and the postcodes of Fareham service users. The Centre
Manager will also be invited to present to the Leisure and Community Policy
Development and Review Panel.
CONCLUSIONS
Relate Solent provide a counselling service for Fareham residents. The provision
of funding for a further year would provide the organisation with stability, which
would enable the service to be more accessible to residents who cannot afford to
pay the full cost of a session.

Enquiries:

For further information on this report please contact Emma Watts, Leisure and
Community Manager (Ext. 4440)

Page 7






Appendix A

DRAFT

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT
Between
RELATE SOLENT
And

FAREHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL

1st APRIL 2018 - 31st MARCH 2019

Page 9



Appendix A

RELATE SOLENT
AND
FAREHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT
1 April 2018 — 31 March 2019

1. PARTIES TO THE AGREEMENT

1.1. This agreement (“‘the Agreement’) is between (1) - Fareham Borough
Council (“FBC”) and (2) - Relate Solent.

1.2. The Agreement is intended to indicate the intention in good faith of each
of the parties. It is not intended to create a legally enforceable contract.
2. DURATION
2.1. The Agreement is for a total period of one year; commencing on 1 April
2018 and expiring on 31 March 2019, unless terminated earlier in
accordance with clause 11 below.

3. PURPOSE OF THE AGREEMENT

3.1. To ensure the efficient use of FBC's financial and other assistance to
Relate Solent.

3.2.  To maintain and develop a working partnership between FBC and Relate
Solent.

3.3. To ensure the continuing development of the service, as described in
clause 4 below (“the Service”).
4. THE SERVICE
4.1. Relate Solent is a Registered Charity; number 1087082.

4.2. Relate Solent will provide Couple Counselling, Family Counselling,
Individual Relationship Support, Sex Therapy and courses in Life Skills.

Page 10



Appendix A

4.3. Relate Solent will offer the Service to residents of Fareham from; the
offices of Relate Solent in Southampton, the offices of Relate Portsmouth
and District from Portsmouth and where possible from an outpost based in
the Borough of Fareham.

4.4. The Service shall be confidential.

4.5. The purpose of the funding is to provide a bursary to enable Relate Solent
to provide the Service to Fareham residents who are unable to meet the
full cost of counselling.

MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS

5.1. The Trustee Board of Relate Solent is responsible for its own overall
policy and decision making and is the body accountable for the provision
of the Service set out in this agreement.

5.2. The Trustee Board, which may include up to two representatives of FBC,
will meet at least two times per year.

5.3. The Trustee Board will undertake to provide the appropriate training for
staff to ensure a quality of service.

5.4. The Trustee Board will ensure robust operational management to run the
Service on a day-to-day basis.

5.5. This Service Level Agreement relates to the core activities of Relate
Solent, which will be provided by a combination of paid staff and voluntary
advisers.

5.6. A copy of the Relate Solent constitution is attached to this agreement.

MONITORING & EVALUATION

6.1. At six monthly intervals, Relate Solent will provide FBC with statistical
information detailing the services provided and the postcodes of Fareham
service users. This will include a summary of the number of counselling
sessions conducted, clients supported and their ethnic origin, age, gender
and disability. At this point an update on the financial situation will be
supplied.

6.2. Relate Solent will present annually to the Leisure and Community Policy
Development Review Panel.

6.3. In the event that the service provided by Relate Solent falls below that set
out in the agreement in any respect, the FBC liaison officer may call an
ad-hoc meeting with the representatives of the Trustee Board to consider
if any appropriate action should be taken.

Page 11



Appendix A

6.4. Relate Solent will operate a client complaints procedure.

LIAISON AND COMMUNICATION

7.1. Relate Solent and FBC will appoint a liaison officer (or officers) who will be
the key point of contact in each organisation with authority to speak on
behalf of their agency.

7.2. The role of the liaison officer(s) will be as follows :-

e To be the initial and primary point of contact within FBC for Relate
Solent.

e To provide advice, support and information to Relate Solent as
appropriate on a range of issues.

e To be afforded reasonable access to records of Relate Solent (except
confidential case records containing information about individual
clients and personnel records) and access to all financial records of
Relate Solent.

e To provide information and advice within FBC on all matters relating to
Relate Solent.

FUNDING
8.1. The contribution towards core funding will be £4,000 per annum.

8.2. This one year agreement will commence from 1st April 2018

8.3. Any or all sums paid or payable to the Relate Solent under or pursuant to
the agreement will be exclusive of VAT.

8.4. FBC will pay its grant to Relate Solent in one payment at the beginning of
April each year, for the duration of the agreement.

8.5. Relate Solent will supply the FBC liaison officer(s) with copies of the
audited annual accounts of the organisation within six months of the close
of each financial year.

INSURANCE

9.1. Relate Solent has the legal responsibility for all insurance matters and for
any claims arising from its activities. FBC reserves the right to satisfy
itself of the adequacy of insurance cover, as a condition for payment of
grant. A copy of the annual insurance certificate is requested upon
renewal each year for audit purposes.

Page 12



Appendix A

10. REVIEW

10.1. At the end of each financial year there will be a review of the service
providing the information as requested in section 6.

11. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

11.1. The agreement can be terminated by either party giving the other party six
months’ notice in writing.

12. NOTICES
12.1. Any notice to be served on either of the parties by the other shall be sent

to by registered post to the address of the relevant party shown at the
head of the Agreement.

This agreementis dated the ...

Signed by:- ... on behalf of Fareham Borough Council
NamMe. ...

Signed by:- oo, on behalf of Relate Solent

NamMe. ..o

Page 13






Appendix B

@Q}_\,‘,@
T2

COMPANIES ACT 1985 to 2006
(Company Limited by Guarantee and not having a share capital)
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
OF

RELATE SOUTH WEST HAMPSHIRE AND THE ISLE OF WIGHT

PART A

dhhhdbdbbhhdbdbbhhhbbibbbbtdddbbbbbbdhhbbhhbbddbbbbhhdbbbbhdbbbbbddddthdds

PRELIMINARY
‘2006 Act’ . means the Companies Act 2006 including any statutory
modification or re-enactment thercof for the time being in
force;
‘the Act’ means the Companies Act 1985 including any statutory

modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force and any provisions of the 2006 Act for the time being in
force.

‘clear days’ in relation to the period of a notice means that period
excluding the day when the notice is given or deemed to be
given and the day for which it is given on which it is to take

effect.
‘the Centre’ means the above named Company.
‘Centre Area’ means the beneficial area of the Centre as defined in Article 3

in Part B of these Articles.

‘Chair’ means the Chairperson of the Executive for the time being
appointed in accordance with Article 27.

‘Connected Person’” means a person entitled to receive a salary, fees or
remuneration of any kind whatsoever in respect of services
performed for the Centre and who is the spouse, child or other
close relative of a member of the Executive.

‘Corporate Member’ means an Institution which shall have become a member.

Page 15



‘District’

‘District Committee’

means an area of the Centre’s operation established by the
Executive.

means the members responsible for managing the District in
accordance with Article 39.

‘Executive’ and means and shall be the equivalent of and shall fulfil the
‘Members of the functions of, respectively, the board and the directors of the
Executive’ Centre as defined in the Act.

‘Institution’ means any incorporated or unincorporated body and in the
case of an unincorporated body all the Members thereof shall
be deemed collectively to be one person for the purposes of
these Articles.

‘Member’ means a person admitted to membership in accordance with
Atrticle 4.

‘month’ means calendar month.

‘Office’ means the registered office of the Centre.

‘Officers’ means the Chair, Vice-Chair or Vice Chairs and Treasurer of
the Centre.

‘Relate’ means the charitable company limited by guarantee,
registered company no. 394221, registered charity no.
207314.

‘Secretary’ means the Secretary of the Centre or any other person
appointed under Article 45 to perform the dutics of the
Secretary of the Centre including a joint, assistant or deputy
Secretary.

‘Spouse’ means a husband or wife of any person living as a partner or
in a similar long term relationship.

‘The United Kingdom’ means Great Britain and Northern Ireland.

‘in writing’ means written, printed or lithographed, or partly one and

partly another, and other modes of representing and
reproducing words in a visible form.

Where the context so requires words importing the singular number shall include the plural and vice
versa and words importing the masculine gender shall include the feminine gender. Words
including the importing persons include corporations.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words or expressions contained in these Articles bear the
same meaning as in the Act and 2006 Act but excluding any statutory modification thereof not in
force when these Articles become binding on the Centre.

Page 16



CONSTITUENT STATUS

The Centre is a Constituent Body of Relate and as such is bound by the Articles of
Association and byelaws of Relate, the Relate Membership Agreement, Relate Quality
Standards and other regulations for the time being in force relating to Constituent
Body status. As a Constituent Body of Relate the Centre is bound to the best of its
ability to further the objects, interests and influence of Relate.

MEMBERS

The subscribers to the Memorandum of Association and such other persons as shall be
admitted to membership in accordance with these articles and none others shall be
members of the Centre and shall be entered in the register of members accordingly.

Any person or Institution shall be admitted to Membership upon receipt at the Office
of a signed application in writing in a form approved by the Executive unless the
Executive shall within six weeks of such receipt decide that in their view (which
decision shall be final) the admission of the applicant to Membership would be
prejudicial to the interest of the Centre.

Each Corporate Member and each other Member may pay a subscription in each
financial year such subscription being agreed from time to time by the Executive.

A Member shall cease to be a Member if:

@A) his/her subscription is more than one month in arrears and the Executive resolve
for that reason that she/he shall cease to be a Member.

(i1) the membership of the Member is, after giving the Member an opportunity to be
heard by the Executive, determined by the Executive.

GENERAL MEETINGS

The Centre may in each year hold a general meeting as an annual general meeting in
addition to any other meeting in that year and shall specify the meeting as such in the
notices calling it. Any such annual general meeting shall be held at such time and
place as the Executive shall appoint.

No business or matter other than that of which Notice has been given shall be
transacted or considered at an annual general meeting.

Page 17



10

11

12

13

14

All general meetings other than annual general meetings shall be called general
meetings.

The Executive may whenever it thinks fit convene a general meeting.

The Executive shall call a general meeting whenever a requisition in writing, signed
by not less than one tenth of the Members (or 5% of the Members where more than 12
months has elapsed since the end of the last general meeting), and stating in full the
objects of the meeting, shall be deposited at the office at the Centre.

If the Executive within 21 days after the deposit of any such requisition does not issue
notices calling a meeting in accordance therewith, the requisitionists, or a majority of
them, may themselves convene a general meeting for the business described in the
requisition, to be held at such time within three months from the date of such deposit
and at such place as they think fit.

All meetings convened by the requisitionists under this and the preceding Article shall
be convened in the same manner as nearly as possible as that in which meetings are to
be convened by the Executive.

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS

All general meetings, including the annual general meeting (if any), shall be called by
at least fourteen clear days’ notice but a general meeting may be called by shorter
notice if it is so agreed -

(a) in the case of annual general meeting, by 95% of the members entitled to
attend and vote thereat; and

(b) in the case of any other meeting by 95% of the members having a right to
attend and vote.

The notice shall specify the time, date and place of the meeting, the general nature of the
business to be transacted and a statement pursuant to the Act informing the Members of their
rights regarding proxies. In the case of an annual general meeting, the notice shall specify
the meeting as such.

The notice shall be given to all the Members and to the Members of the Executive.

PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

No business shall be transacted at any general meeting, except the adjournment of the
meeting, unless a quorum is present when the meeting proceeds to business. Save as

4

Page 18



16

17

18

19

20

21

herein otherwise provided three members of the Centre present in person or by proxy
shall be a quorum.

If, within half an hour from the time appointed for the holding of a general meeting a
quorum is not present, the meeting, if convened on the requisition of members, shall
be dissolved. In any other case it shall stand adjourned to the same day in the next
week, at the same time and place or at such other place as the Executive may
determine, and if at such adjourned meeting a quorum is not present within half an
hour from the time appointed for holding the meeting, the members of the Centre
present shall be deemed to be a quorum and may do all business which a full quorum
might have done.

The Chair or in his/her absence the Vice-Chair of the Executive or one of the Vice-
Chairs shall preside as Chair at every general meeting, but if there is no such Chair or
Vice-Chair, or if at any meeting he/she shall not be present within 15 minutes after the
time appointed for holding the same or shall be unwilling to preside, the members
present shall choose some member of the Executive or if no such member be present,
or if all the member of the Executive present decline to take the Chair, they shall
choose some member of the Centre who shall be present to preside.

At any general meeting a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on
a show of hands, unless a poll is, before or upon the declaration of the result of the
show of hands, demanded by the Chair or by at least three members of the Centre
present in person, or by a Member or Members representing one tenth of the total
voting rights of all the Members having the right to vote at the meeting, and unless a
poll is so demanded a declaration by the Chair of the meeting that a Resolution has
been carried, or carried unanimously or by a particular majority, or lost or not carried
by a particular majority, and an entry to that effect in the Minute book of the Centre
shall be conclusive evidence of the fact without proof of the number or proportion of
the votes recorded in favour of or against that resolution. The demand for a poll may
be withdrawn.

Subject to the provisions of Article 20, if a poll be demanded and in the manner
aforesaid, it shall be taken at such time and place and in such manner, as the Chair of
the meeting shall direct, and the result of the poll shall be deemed to be the resolution
of the meeting at which the poll was demanded.

No poll shall be demanded on the election of a Chair of a meeting, or on any question
of adjournment.

In the case of an equality of votes, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, the Chair
of the meeting shall be entitled to a second or casting vote.

Page 19



22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Demand for a poll shall not prevent the continuance of a meeting for the transaction of
any business other than the question of which a poll had been demanded.

Subject as hereafter provided, every Member of the Centre shall have one vote.

Each Corporate Member shall have the right to be represented at general meetings of
the Centre by not more than two persons whom it may from time to time appoint
provided that for the purpose of voting at general meetings and constituting a quorum
thereat only one of the appointed representatives shall be counted as a Member.

MANAGEMENT CONTROL

The management and control of the business and affairs of the Centre shall be vested
in the Executive, who may exercise all the powers, authorities and discretions of the
Centre, except only such as under the Act, 2006 Act or these Articles are expressly
directed to be exercised by the Centre in general meeting and subject to any directions
given by the Centre by a special resolution.

CONSTITUTION OF THE EXECUTIVE

The Executive shall consist of a minimum of six and a maximum of eighteen
Members.

The Executive shall consist of:

() The Officers.

(i1) Such other Members as together with the Officers shall not be less than six in
number and as shall not cause the limits specified in Article 26 to be exceeded. Not
less than four Members shall be elected Members.

(iii) One member of each District Committee being the Chair or some other member

nominated by the District Committee.
(iv) Members appointed under Article 31 to fill a casual vacancy and

%) Persons appointed under Article 32.

The Officers and the elected Members of the Executive shall, subject to the provisions
of Article 30 as to the representatives of Corporate Members, be elected by the
Members of the Centre other than Corporate Members at a general meeting (or annual

Page 20



29

30

31

32

33

general meeting, if any) or by written resolution, and shall hold office for a year but
shall be eligible for re-election.

When Officers or elected Members of the Executive complete their terms of office, or
if casual vacancies occur, the Executive will invite the members to provide
nominations for candidates to stand for election.

Each Member of the Centre may nominate persons being individual Members or
representatives of Corporate Members for each office and as other elected Members of
the Executive. The members shall be informed of the closing date by which
nominations must be received. Any person who is at the date of nomination a duly
appointed representative of a Corporate Member shall be eligible for election as an
Officer or elected Member of the Executive.

Subject to Article 26 the Executive may appoint any person qualified to be an elected
Member to be a Member of the Executive for the purpose of filling a casual vacancy
among the Officers or elected members of the Executive. Any person appointed a
Member of the Executive under this Article shall hold office until the conclusion of
the term of office of the departing Officer or elected member of the Executive who
created the casual vacancy but shall be eligible for re-election.

Subject to Article 26 the Executive shall have the power at any time, and from time to
time, to appoint any person whether a Member of the Centre or not to be a co-opted
member of the Executive. The total number of co-opted members shall not exceed
two. Any Member of the Executive so appointed shall hold office until his/her
appointment is terminated by the Executive provided always that such Member shall
cease to be a co-opted Member if he/she becomes an elected Member.

The office of a Member of the Executive (including the Officers) shall be vacated if
the member:

6] becomes bankrupt or has a receiving order made against him/her
(i) becomes of unsound mind

(iii)  being a Member of the Centre at the time of appointment should cease to be a
Member of the Centre

(iv)  being a representative of a District Committee appointed in accordance with
Article 27(iii) ceases to be a Member of the District Committee

W) resigns his/her office by notice in writing to the Centre

(vi)  is prohibited by law from being a Member of the Executive.

Page 21



34

35

36A

37

38

39

The Chair’s period of office shall be two years renewable to a maximum of eight
years. The maximum period on the Executive shall also be eight consecutive years for
all other Members and Co-options.

EXECUTIVE MEETINGS

The Executive may meet together, adjourn and otherwise regulate their meetings as
they think fit, provided that no business shall be transacted unless a quorum consisting
of three Members shall be present. The chair shall be taken at every Executive
Meeting by the Chair or in his/her absence the Vice-Chair, or in the absence of both,
by a Member of the Executive chosen by the Members of the Executive present and
entitled to vote.

At Executive Meetings voting shall only be by show of hands, and, subject to Article
37, every member of the Executive present at an Executive Meeting shall have one
vote.

In case of equality of votes the person in the chair shall have a second casting vote.

The Executive shall meet at least four times a year.

DISTRICT COMMITTEES

(a) The Executive may divide the Centre Area into Districts and appoint a District
Committee for each District.

(b) The Executive may delegate any of their powers or the implementation of any of
their resolutions in respect of a District to the relevant District Committee.

© The composition of a District Committee shall be at the discretion of the Executive
and may comprise such Members of the Executive and such other persons as the
Executive may specify.

(d) All delegations under this Article shall be revocable at any time.

© The Executive may make such regulations and impose such terms and conditions and
give such mandates to a District Committee as it may from time to time think fit.

® The deliberations of every District Committee shall be reported regularly to the

Executive and any resolution passed or decision taken by a District Committee shall
be reported forthwith to the Executive.

Page 22



40

41

42

43

44

45

46

DELEGATION

The Executive may delegate any of their powers or the implementation of any of their
resolutions to a management committee or other sub-committee on the same terms and
subject to the same conditions as those specified in paragraphs (c) to (f) of Article 39.

The Executive may appoint such person or persons as it shall think fit to act as a
Delegate of the Centre at any Regional Constituency Meetings, annual general
meetings or other meetings at which the Centre is entitled to be represented and may
terminate the appointment of any such Delegate at any time.

ACCOUNTS

(a) The Executive shall cause accounting records to be kept and accounts to be
prepared in accordance with the Act.

(b) The books of accounts shall be kept at the Office or, subject to the provisions of
the Act, at such other place or places as the Executive shall think fit, and shall
always be open to the inspection of the Members of the Executive.

The Executive shall comply with their obligations under the Charities Act 1993  (or
any statutory re-enactment or modification of that Act) with regard to the preparation
of an Annual Report and its transmission to the Charity Commissioners.

The Executive shall comply with their obligations under the Charities Act 1993 (or
any statutory re-enactment or modification of that Act) with regard to the preparation
of an Annual Return and its transmission to the Charity Commissioners.

SECRETARY

Subject to the provisions of the Act, a Secretary may be appointed by the Executive
for such term at such remuneration and upon such conditions as they may think fit;
and any Secretary so appointed may be removed by them.

SEAL

The seal (if any) shall only be used by the authority of the Executive or of a committee
of Executive Members authorised by the Executive. The Executive may determine
who shall sign any instrument to which the seal is affixed and unless otherwise so
determined it shall be signed by:

Page 23



47

48

49

50

(a) any Member of the Executive and either the Secretary (if any) or another
Member of the Executive; or

(b) any Member of the Executive in the presence of a witness who attests the
signature.

NOTICES

Subject to the Articles, the Centre may deliver a notice or other document to a
Member:

(a) by delivering it by hand to an address as provided in accordance with
Paragraph 4 of Schedule 5 to the 2006 Act;

(b) by sending it by post or other delivery service in an envelope (with postage or
delivery paid) to an address as provided in accordance with Paragraph 4 of
Schedule 5 to the 2006 Act;

(© by fax to a fax number notified by the Member in writing;
(@ in electronic form to an address notified by the Member in writing;

(e) by a website, the address of which shall be notified to the Member in writing;
or

® by advertisement in at least two national newspapers.

Every Member whose registered place of address is not in the United Kingdom may
from time to time notify in writing to the Centre an address in the United Kingdom,
which shall be deemed his/her registered place of address for the purposes of this
Article.

Delivery of documents and information sent or supplied by the Centre in accordance
with Article 47 will be deemed to have been received by the recipient in accordance
with section 1147 of the 2006 Act.

INDEMNITY

The Executive shall have power to resolve pursuant to Article 5 of Part B of these
Articles to effect Trustees Indemnity Insurance notwithstanding their interest in such
policy.

The Members of the Executive of the Centre shall be indemnified out of the funds of
the Centre against all reasonable and proper costs, charges, losses, damages and

10

Page 24



expenses which they shall respectively incur or be put to on account of any act, deed
matter or thing which shall be executed, done or permitted by them respectively in or
about the bona fide execution of their respective offices, and shall be reimbursed by
the Centre all reasonable expenses incurred by them in or about any legal proceedings
or arbitration on account of the Centre or otherwise in the execution of their respective
offices, except such costs, losses and expenses as shall happen through their respective
wilful act, neglect or default; and no Members of the Executive shall be chargeable for
any money which he/she shall not actually receive, or be answerable for the act,
receipt, neglect or default of any other Member of the Executive, or of any banker,
broker, collector, agent or other person appointed by the Executive (as the case may
be) with whom or into whose hands any property or moneys of the Centre may be
deposited or come, or for the insufficiency of any security or investment in or upon
which any of the moneys of the Centre shall be invested (so long as he/she shall have
sought professional advice before making such investments) or for any loss of damage
which may happen in the execution of his/her office, unless the same shall happen
through his/her own wilful act, neglect or default or through his/her own dishonesty.

11

Page 25



REJ—a sk
i‘7/'\1\ s

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
OF
RELATE SOUTH WEST HAMPSHIRE AND THE ISLE OF WIGHT
PART B

Articles which prior to 1 October 2009 comprised the Memorandum of Association

1 The name of the Company (“the Centre”) is “Relate South West Hampshire and the
Isle of Wight”.

2 The registered office of the Centre will be situated in England.

3 The Centre shall operate in the area of Local Authority Districts of Eastleigh,
Farcham, New Forest, Test Valley, Winchester, the Unitary Authorities of
Southampton, the Isle of Wight and other such area as shall be determined by the
Board of Trustees of Relate after first hearing and considering the views of any Centre
that may be affected

4(A) The Objects of the Centre are:

4.1 to educate the public concerning the benefits of secure couple relationships, marriage
and family life in order to improve the emotional, sexual and spiritual well-being of
individuals which is derived from committed relationships;

4.2 to seek to enhance, the good health, both mental and physical, of adults and children
by:

4.2.1 increasing public awareness of the benefit of committed couple relationships,
marriage, and family life; and

4.2.2 working to prevent poverty, hardship and distress caused by the breakdown of
such relationships;

4.3 to provide counselling, advice, education, guidance and relief to adults and/or children
in relation to any aspect of contemporary life or work which:

4.3.1 may prejudice their physical or mental well being; or

4.3.2 influence, either directly or indirectly, their present or future family or couple
relationship;

44  to relieve those in need by reason of youth, age, ill-health, disability, financial hardship or
other disadvantage; and

12

Page 26



4.5

4(B)

to promote research into all of the above Objects and to make the results available to the

public.

In furtherance of the objects set out in the preceding Article 4(A) but not otherwise the
Executive shall have the following powers:

(2)

(b)

(©

d

©

®

(@

()

)

(k)

To establish outlets for the giving of information and advice and for
providing a confidential counselling service to persons having difficulties or
anxieties in their marriage or other personal relationships.

To publish educational books, pamphlets, leaflets, journals, reports, films and
other matter and to organise and promote lectures, discussions, conferences,
seminars and courses.

To provide an educational service in personal relationships for young people,
engaged and married couples and parents.

To make the public aware of the benefits of stable marriage in the community
and the importance of settled family life in the upbringing of children.

To purchase, take on lease or in exchange, hire or otherwise acquire any real
or personal property and any rights or privileges necessary or expedient for the
promotion of the said objects and to construct, maintain and alter any
buildings or erections necessary or expedient for the work of the Centre.

Subject to such consents as may be required by law to sell, let, mortgage,
dispose of or turn to account all or any of the property or assets of the Centre.

Subject to such consents as may be required by law to undertake, execute and
manage any charitable trusts which may be lawfully undertaken by the Centre.

Subject to such consents as may be required by law to borrow or raise money
for the purposes of the Centre on such terms and on such security as shall be
thought fit.

To invest the monies of the Centre not immediately required for its purposes
in or upon such investments, securities, or property as may be thought fit,
subject nevertheless to such conditions (if any) as may for the time being be
imposed or required by law and subject also as hereinafter provided.

To establish and support or aid in the establishment and support of any
charitable associations or institutions and to subscribe or guarantee money for
charitable purposes in any way connected with the purpose of the Centre and
calculated to further its purposes and in particular subject to Article 3 of this
Part B above to co-operate and collaborate with any other Relate Centre or
Centres.

To take and accept any gifts of property, whether or not subject to special
trusts, for the purposes of the Centre and to raise voluntary funds (and for that

13

Page 27



@

(m)

purpose to establish a body of Friends of the Centre) and to receive and accept
contributions by way of subscription, donations or otherwise.

Subject to Article 5 below to appoint, remove or suspend lecturers, technical
advisers, solicitors, clerks, agents and servants for permanent or special
services or otherwise and to determine their duties and fix their reasonable and
proper remuneration.

To do all such other lawful things as shall further the attainment of the said
objects or any of them.

5(A) The income and property of the Centre shall be applied solely toward the promotion of
its objects and no portion thereof shall be paid or transferred directly or indirectly by
way of bonus or otherwise howsoever by way of profit to the Members. Provided that
nothing herein shall prevent any payment in good faith by the Centre:

(@)

(b)

or

©

of reasonable and proper remuneration of any member, officer, counsellor or
employee of the Centre (not being a member of its Executive or of a District
Committee) for any services rendered to the Centre on condition that no
member of the Executive or of a District Committee whose spouse, child or
other close relative is a connected person shall be entitled to vote on a
Resolution or attend any part of any meeting of the Centre or of the Executive
or of a District Committee concerning the appointment to an office of the
Centre or any payment made or to be made by the Centre to that connected
person.

to any member, officer, counsellor or employee of the Centre of out-of pocket
expenses reasonably and properly incurred on behalf of the Centre;

of reasonable and proper premium in respect of any indemnity insurance to
cover the liability of the Executive (or any member of the Executive) which
by virtue of any rule of law would otherwise attach to them in respect of any
negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust of which they may be
guilty in relation to the Centre; provided that any such indemnity insurance
shall not extend to any claim for loss arising from any act or omission which
the Executive (or any member of the Executive) knew to be a breach of trust
or breach of duty or which was committed by the Executive (or any member
of the Executive) in reckless disregard of whether it was a breach of trust or
breach of duty or not.

5(B) Whenever a Member of the Executive has a personal interest directly or indirectly in a
matter to be discussed at a meeting of the Executive or a committee of the Executive,
the Member of the Executive concerned shall:

®

declare an interest at or before discussion begins on the matter;
14

Page 28



(9

(ii) withdraw from the meeting for that item unless expressly invited to remain in
order to give information;

(iii)  not be counted in the quorum for the part of the meeting devoted to that item;
and

(iv)  withdraw during the vote and have no vote on the matter.

If a conflict of interests arises for a Member of the Executive, which may but need not
be because of a duty of loyalty owed to another organisation or person, and the
conflict is not authorised by virtue of any other provision in the Articles, the
unconflicted Members of the Executive may authorise such a conflict of interests
provided that:

@) the unconflicted Members of the Executive consider it is in the interests of the
Centre to authorise the conflict of interest in the circumstances applying; and

(i1) any conditions on the authorisation imposed by the unconflicted Members of
the Executive are followed.

The liability of the members is limited.

Every member of the Centre undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Centre in the
event of the same being wound up during the time he/she is a member or within one
year afterwards for payment of the debts and liabilities of the Centre contracted before
the time at which he/she ceases to be a member, and of the costs, charges and
expenses of winding up the same and for the adjustment of the rights of the
contributories amongst themselves, such amount as may be required not exceeding £1.

If upon the winding-up or dissolution of the Centre there remains, after the satisfaction
of all its debts and liabilities, any property whatsoever, the same shall not be paid to or
distributed among the members of the Centre, but shall be given or transferred to such
other Relate Centre or in default thereof to Relate determined by the members of the
Centre at or before the time of dissolution, and if and so far as effect cannot be given
to such provision, then to some charitable object.

The Articles of Association of the Centre may be amended by a special resolution of
the Centre passed in accordance of the Act provided that:

15

Page 29



(a)

(®)

(©)

no amendment shall be made to Article 4(A), Article 8 or Article 9 in each
case of this Part B without the prior written consent of the Charity
Commissioners for England and Wales and the Council of Relate;

no amendment to which section 64 of the Charities Act 1993, (or any statutory
modification or re-enactment of that provision) shall be made without the
prior written consent of the Charity Commissioners; and

no alteration shall be made which would cause the Centre to cease to be a
charity in law.

16

Page 30



	Agenda
	1(1) Relate Solent Service Level Agreement
	Appendix A
	Appendix B


